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Strategic Report of EHA Board  

The Board of Eden Housing Association (EHA) presents its annual report and the audited financial statements for the 
association and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.   

Principal Activities 
The principal activities during the year were the provision and management of affordable rented accommodation and 
housing related support services for people in need. 

Business Review 

Context 
The period covering the financial year ended March 2021 has seen an unprecedented working and living 
environment. The covid-19 pandemic has dominated every aspect of our lives. 

From a business perspective, the association has proved to be very resilient. Our staff have demonstrated fantastic 
flexibility and gone above and beyond right from the beginning of the first national lockdown, where we shifted to 
home-working for the vast majority of our people.  

With the help and assistance of all our key partners, especially our contractors, we have managed to maintain safety 
and statutory compliance across all of our work. 

April 2020 saw the end of the government’s rent reduction policy and our Board, supported by tenants reverted to an 
increase in rents. Our tenants recognising the importance of rents at least keeping pace of inflation to enable 
continued investment in their homes. 

This additional income is important to our planning and preparedness for the changes coming from building safety 
legislation and also from the Social Housing White Paper and future carbon reduction and environmental targets.  

Tenants 
Our tenants have been fantastic in their understanding of what we have been able to do and not do during the year. 
We pride ourselves on being very close to our tenants and this healthy relationship has served us well. An on-site 
presence was delivered throughout at our assisted living and extra care schemes and tenants here have really 
appreciated this commitment and the tailored support we were able to continue to offer. 

Tenants have in increasing numbers been contacting us through social media channels and digitally through our new 
tenants portal. This is something we see only increasing further going forward. 

During the year we created a new Tenant Engagement & Insight Officer role in order that we are able to renew our 
focus and effort on seeing tenants at the heart of everything we do. 

Our Tenant Scrutiny Panel moved to on-line meetings and were still able to conduct two reviews during the year, 
presenting reports to our Board on equality & diversity and performance indicators. Recommendations from the panel 
will be implemented. 

New opportunities for tenants to get involved are being rolled out in early 2021. These are TOP Tenants (an 
opportunity for us to obtain a quick view on any matter from an on-line Tenant Opinion Poll) and a Complaints Panel. 
This panel will be constituted with tenants, board members and supported by our Engagement & Insight Officer to 
review historic complaints, in order to scrutinise for common themes and opportunities to improve. The membership 
also enables another direct line from tenants to board members. 

The complaints panel is part of our positive response to the adoption of the Housing Ombudsman Complaints Code of 
Conduct introduced during the year. 

Operational performance 
The statutory accounts evidence a strong financial performance. All loan covenants were easily met, helped by the 
increased surplus well ahead of budget. This financial result is the product of a unique year, where income has held 
up remarkably well, whilst expenditure on repairs and maintenance has been under budget, due mainly to the access 
constraints placed upon us by government lockdowns.  

We regret the fact that due to the restrictions placed on our operations around the pandemic, we have been unable to 
fully satisfy our tenants demands.  We anticipate this will be remedied in the coming year once restrictions are lifted. 
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Key Value for Money metrics and other performance measures including rent arrears and void rent loss indicate our 
strong performance, despite the challenges faced. 

Key Partners 
Thanks are due to all of our trusted partners who have really helped and supported us to deliver positive results right 
across the breadth of our operations.  

Our team has worked closely with our local contractors to prioritise emergency and safety works. Our team also 
continued to deliver covid-safe external repairs to support continuity of work for our contractors. Close and joint 
working with care staff at our assisted living and extra care schemes has helped reassure tenants and their families 
and loved ones during some really scary and challenging times. 

The pandemic led to heavy and sustained demand for temporary accommodation. In our agency role, carrying out the 
statutory homeless function on behalf of Eden District Council, our team did everything it could to ensure everyone 
presenting as potentially homeless could be accommodated. 

We have tried to be as flexible as possible to help others too. Our long-standing relationship carrying out managing 
agent services for Mitre Housing Association goes from strength to strength. In January 2021, we signed a new 5 year 
agreement, providing forward commitment. 

A productive collaboration came to fruition in March 2021 with the ‘go live’ of our electric vehicle charging point in the 
car park at our head office. The charging point is there to serve the local community as well as for staff and visitors. A 
reduced financial charge has been offered to NHS workers. This project put together through experts Charge My 
Street and local organisation Cumbria Action for Sustainability has been put together as a cost neutral initiative for the 
association. 

Development 
Our new affordable homes development at William Street in Penrith and acquisition of a bungalow were finally 
completed in May last year, having been delayed by the first lockdown. 

Tenants moving in have been delighted with their new homes. 

Our focus over the last 12 months has been in lining up our next project. We have been working on the viability of 
different projects led by community groups in the rural villages of Eden and are optimistic that one of these will come 
to fruition during 2021/ 22. 

Governance 
The association received affirmation of its continued G1 / V1 regulatory judgement in November 2020. 

We were successful in recruiting two new board members who were elected at the AGM in September 2020. Our 
Board continues to be made up of unpaid volunteers and the quality, skills and experience of our members evidences 
our success in recruiting to these vitally important non-executive roles. 

Our Board at its meeting in March 2021, agreed to adopt the newly published National Housing Federation (NHF) 
Governance Code 2020. The Board sees opportunity for increasing diversity in a maximum 6 year term becoming the 
norm. 

It was with great sadness that during the year we learned of the death of one of our former Chair’s Joan Johnstone.  
Joan was one of our founder Board Members following the transfer from Eden District Council in 1997.  She became 
Chair in 2007, and gave Eden Housing Association 14 years before retiring in 2011.   

Risk 
Our corporate risk register is reviewed in detail by the Audit & Risk Management Committee at each of its meetings 
and by the Board at least annually. 

Risks flowing from the pandemic have been in focus throughout this last year and have been mitigated effectively. 
However, there continues to be continuing risks to the economy, jobs and household income and so clearly there is 
still much to keep our eyes on. 

We see the highest risk for us as a smaller association continues to be the future demands on our finances and 
resources from the anticipated investment in our existing stock from the new building safety requirements and of 
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course environmental and carbon reduction requirements. Detailed knowledge of our stock condition and attributes 
has never been more important and we are embarked on firming up our future stock investment needs in order to 
inform a renewed asset strategy to take account of these future needs. 

We have a viable 30-year financial business plan and have started paying down debt in order to line up for refinancing 
at an optimum time in the next couple of years. 

Going forward 
Wishing to capture the benefits from technological advances, staff flexibility and increased productivity over the last 
year, we are exploring a permanent move to agile working. This would see our team working from home and office at 
an optimum ratio to achieve the best from our staff and to the benefit of our customers and the business. We have 
invested in IT hardware, servers and networks to enable this and we will formally consult with staff prior to presenting 
any final business case to Board. 

From December 2020 through to March 2021 our Board has been regularly meeting on-line to develop our new 
corporate plan. This work has been informed by extensive engagement with tenants and key stakeholders. The 
resultant plan Succeeding Together 2021-2024 sets out our new 3 year priorities;  

a) Tenant Voice and influence 
b) Investment in assets 
c) Value in collaboration 
d) Outstanding organisation 

The plan signals our intention to work with others to achieve more than we are able to alone. It recognises and places 
first our tenant priorities around safety in the home and repairs and maintenance. Additionally, our Board is 
aspirational in its expectations on providing good value and pursuing improvement in everything we do. 

During the year we divested of a former office building. We are exploring the creation of a community investment 
endowment fund with the proceeds. The aim would be to distribute small financial grants to local people and 
communities to invest in local, self-help projects across the district of Eden. 

Finally, the government is currently consulting on a change to the make up of local government across Cumbria. The 
current county and district structure is likely to change. Four options are being consulted upon, all of which would see 
a move to a unitary approach, which we would support. However, what remains unclear is whether we will see one 
unitary across the whole of Cumbria or two unitaries with different geographic footprints. The association will look to 
engage and work constructively with any future new organisations to do the best for our tenants and our local 
neighbourhoods. 

Health & Safety 
The Board takes its responsibilities with regard to health and safety extremely seriously and receives a report from the 
Chief Executive at every Board meeting.  It seeks support in the detailed scrutinising of health and safety performance 
through its appointed Audit & Risk Management Committee.  The Audit & Risk Management Committee monitor and 
review health & safety performance at every meeting.  The business operates with detailed policies and procedures 
and we provide staff training and education on health and safety matters 

Our Chair and Chief Executive are committed to leading by example and our Health & Safety Policy Statement was 
signed by both in March 2020. 

Recent engagement with tenants reaffirms that safety above everything else is the most important thing. Our new 
corporate plan 2021-24 recognises this and we will strengthen our procedures even further especially around 
transparency of communication to our tenants. 

Employee Relations 
We aim to keep our employees informed and engaged on all matters affecting them and on the progress of the 
association.  This is carried out in a number of ways, including formal and informal briefings and meetings. 

An annual staff survey is conducted.  Our latest survey was independently carried out in January 2021.  The response 
rate was 89% with 94.7% of staff responding said they would recommend Eden Housing Association as a good place 
to work. 
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Our staff have gone way above and beyond in keeping on supporting and providing services to our tenants and other 
customers in the last 12 months. 

Charitable Contributions 
The Association made no charitable donations in the year.  However, it has facilitated a small number of charitable 
donations through staff and volunteers, benefitting various local charities including our business partner charity 
Hospice at Home. 

Form and Content of Financial Statements 
The financial statements have been drawn up to comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) 2018 
and the Accounting Direction 2019 for Private Registered Providers. 

Value for Money (VFM) 

Introduction 
Our 3-year Corporate Plan (2018-21), ‘Owning our Future’ sets Providing Value as one of four goals and contains the 
following value for money success targets; 

• Absorb inflationary rises over the life of the plan and reduce our Management Cost per Unit. 

• Consistently achieve an Operating Margin for Social housing Lettings of at least 33.3% 

These measures are based in the context that we operate primarily across the second largest geographic and most 
sparsely populated District in England.  As a consequence of this and our organisational size we are unlikely to be the 
lowest on a simple comparison of management cost per unit, however we will always wish to be able to evidence that 
our headline costs are truly providing value. 

During the financial year a Value for Money (VFM) Strategy progress report was discussed at every meeting of our 
Audit & Risk Management Committee and in January 2021 our Board received a report detailing that our 3-year VFM 
Strategy Action Plan was complete.  We are now in the process of drafting an updated VFM Strategy to align with our 
new corporate plan, Succeeding Together, to continue to drive improvements and value to our tenants.      

Our VFM Strategy supports our core mission, “to be a good trusted social landlord and employer with a strong sense 
of place” and we aim to optimise the use of our assets and resources to invest in our people and our communities to 
deliver this.  

The specific VFM goals and strategic objectives, from our Corporate Plan, ‘Owning our Future’ are as follows; 

Goal – Good Social Landlord 

a) Building and investing in the right homes in the right places, to protect value in our assets and evidence 
understanding of real demand 

b) Increasing our digital self-service offer, making it easier for customers 

Goal – Providing Value 

a) Reduce our cost base to strengthen long-term viability. In year 2 of our 3 year strategy we changed the 
emphasis from reducing to controlling our costs in recognition of the increasing health and safety and 
compliance demands arising from the recommendations flowing from the tragic event at Grenfell. 

b) Explore and develop partnerships to innovate and increase capacity 

Goal – Trusted Employer 

a) Foster teamwork and commitment - so our 'one team' delivers more than the sum of its parts 

In simple terms we aim to make the best use of every pound we spend to; 

• Contribute to the delivery of much needed new affordable rented homes 

• Invest in our existing housing stock 

• Provide better services for our tenants 

• Invest in our staff and key relationships 
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Covid-19 pandemic 
The operating environment during the financial year 2020/21 has been seriously impacted by the unprecedented 
global pandemic. At the time of writing there is optimism on the back of the so far successful and efficient roll out of a 
vaccination programme and the government roadmap out of covid restrictions.   

Responding to and dealing with the operational challenges thrown up by the pandemic have led to the associations’ 
employees working more flexibly with the majority of our workforce being based at and working safely from home. 

References to the impact on our value for money performance from the pandemic is threaded throughout this VFM 
self-assessment. 

Performance Metrics 
Our Board monitors performance against the key metrics directed by the Regulatory Standard on a quarterly basis 
and recognises these as a consistent base from which to build an indicative financial view of the organisation and 
those that we compare ourselves against. 

In addition to the mandatory metrics taken from the VFM Standard our Board also monitors a small number of 
bespoke metrics to form part of its performance oversight.  The following table demonstrates how we have performed 
on these metrics during 2020/21 compared with targets and prior year results and against our peers within the sector. 

  

2021/22 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 

EHA  
Target 
(as per 
budget) 

EHA 
Actual EHA 

Target *** 
EHA 

Actual  
EHA 

Actual 
RSH 

Median 

RSH Metrics         

Metric 1 - Reinvestment % 3.45% 1.79% 3.1% 5.1% 3.6% 7.2% 

*  Metric 1b – Major Repairs % 2.12% 1.43% 2.4% 1.9% n/a n/a 

Metric 2a - New Supply SH % 0 0.44% 0.1% 0.8% 0.8% 1.5% 

Metric 2a - New Supply SH-units nil 8 2 14 14 n/a 

Metric 3 - Gearing 49.0% 51.8% 51.3% 55.1% 56.7% 44.0% 

Metric 4 - EBITDA MRI 160% 196.7% 122% 129% 196% 170% 

Metric 5 - Headline Social 
Housing Cost Per Unit 

£3,461 £2,861 £3,453 £3,493 £2,673 £3,830 

Metric 6a - OP Margin (SHL) 34.2% 42.0% 32.0% 30.2% 37.8% 25.7% 

Metric 6b - OP Margin (Total) 31.8% 40.2% 30.9% 29.8% 36.7% 23.1% 

Metric 7 - ROCE 4.2% 5.4% 4.1% 4.3% 5.4% 3.4% 

 
EHA Metrics 

  
    

Metric 8 - Management Cost per 
Unit 

£1,407 £1,114 £1,204 £1,134 £991 n/a 

** Metric 9 – Arrears as % of Rent 
Debit 

1.4% 1.12% 1.39% 93.9% 102.2% n/a 

Metric 10a- % of Void Rent Loss 1.32% 1.12% 1.32% 0.97% 1.51% n/a 

Metric 10b – Out of Management 
Voids 

2 3 2 3 11 n/a 

Metric 11 - % of tenants would 
recommend EHA to family and 
friends 

90% 98% 90% 95% 97.2% n/a 

Metric 12 - Bad Debt Indicator £230,000 £177,148 £230,000 £189,436 £221,593 n/a 

* Metric 1b introduced by EHA Board for measurement in 2019/20 to capture significant area of spend. 

** Metric 9 prior to 2019/20 measured as % of rent debit collected. EHA Board concluded pattern of rent payments received led to 
misleading result when contrasted with our current rent arrears performance and agreed the new measurement requirement. 

*** EHA targets for 202/21 were set and agreed by the Board prior to lockdown for Covid-19. 
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Our metrics like many similar organisations, reflect a snapshot of where we are in our own journey whilst the 
backward look trend is helpful to provide context.   

Results in the last year have been dramatically impacted by the world-wide pandemic. Overall the association has 
performed strongly given this context. Our VFM indicators generally show a position ahead of targets which were set  
without a real understanding of the year to unfold as it did.  

The Registered Provider sector has generally reported higher surpluses as rental income has held up well and 
expenditure on maintenance has been somewhat curtailed in view of access difficulties, during national lockdowns 
and the availability of contractors due to shielding and isolating of its workforce. 

Further explanation of performance against our VFM metrics follows; 

Metrics 1a – Reinvestment and 1b Major Repairs %:  

The global pandemic has hampered the delivery of major repairs work impacting achievement of this target. Capital 

investment in existing stock was below budget at the end of the year.  We delivered 8 new units in the year, however, 

the bulk of development expenditure against these properties was incurred in previous years. The new development 

opportunities we are pursuing did not come to fruition quite as quickly as hoped and costs incurred this year were 

significantly lower than budgeted.  At 1.71% we did not achieve our reinvestment target for the year.  

Metric 2 – New Supply of Social Housing (SH):   

The Association delivered 8 new units this financial year (7 new affordable rented properties and acquisition of a new 

bungalow in Penrith).  Both developments were expected to be completed in the previous financial year, but got caught 

in the first national lockdown.  

Metric 3 – Gearing:   
Cash holdings are significantly above predicted levels due to delays in spend and capital expenditure.  Debt was 
marginally below predicted levels due to the £1m loan repayment made at the end of the year, above the required 
contractual level to reduce surplus cash.  Overall net debt (loans less cash) was lower than budgeted, 
reducing/improving the level of gearing to 47.5% compared with the targeted level of 51.3%. 

Metric 4 – Earnings Before Interest, Tax and Depreciation Amortization – Major Repairs Included (EBITDA MRI):   

Delays in costs and capital investment in existing stock has resulted in increased net earnings and hence improved the 

EBITDA MRI Interest Cover ratio.   

Metric 5 – Headline Social Housing Cost Per Unit:   
Whilst additional personal protective equipment costs and increased investment in IT was incurred during the year due 

to the pandemic, these costs were outweighed by reduction in management and maintenance costs, resulting in our 

headline social housing costs per unit of £2,861, well within our targeted cost.   

Metric 6a – Operating Margin (Social Housing Lettings only):   
The Operating Margin (Social Housing Lettings Only) for the year was 42.0%, much greater than our targeted level.  

Increased revenue grants from the final completion of the William Street and Tynedale Drive developments combined 

with reduced costs have improved our operating margin in this exceptional year generated from social housing lettings.    

Metric 6b – Operating Margin – (total):  
The Operating Margin (all operations) for the period was 40.2%, ahead of our targeted level.  This calculation of margin here 

includes all operating incomes and costs, including all non-social housing activity, bar gains and losses on property sales.  As 

the margin from property sales is excluded, the overall operating margin achieved is reduced.   

Metric 7 – Return on Capital Employed:  
The ROCE for the year was 5.4%, above the targeted level of 4.1%. The operating surplus (return) considerably above 

our forecast, increased income from grants and reduced costs due to the pandemic combining to improve financial 

performance as noted above. 

Metric 8 - Management Cost per Unit:   
At £1,114, management costs were below the targeted level. A general reduction in most areas of expense despite 
additional costs associated with covid. 
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Metric 9 – Arrears as % of Rent Debit:   
Despite the challenges on household income from the pandemic, tenants have continued to prioritise rent payments.  
Many of our tenants will have received furlough payment or other form of government support. Since March 2020 we 
have seen an additional 147 tenants claiming Universal Credit, now totalling 418 claimants at the end of March 2021. 
We provide support to our tenants by referrals to our hosted partner Cumbria Law Centre, which provides financial 
health check, budgeting and other tailored support to ensure our tenants our maximising any entitlements. 

Metric 10a - % of Void Rent Loss and 10b Out of Management Voids:   
Void rent loss over the year was well within our target. Our result would likely have been better had it not been for the 
restrictions in place during the first quarter of the year, during lockdown. During the subsequent lockdowns too we 
chose to be very cautious with movement in and around our assisted living schemes and re-let times will have been 
slower than normal. We have very few properties out of management. Three properties are being held from letting as 
they either require major structural work or are to be divested, in line with our board approved asset management 
strategy.  

Metric 11 - % of tenants would recommend EHA to family and friends:  
Our regular monthly surveys continue to indicate general high approval for the association and its service provision. 

Metric 12 - Bad Debt Indicator:   
Our bad debts have again been managed within our target. Our track record indicates we deploy effective prevention 
systems. We are not complacent and the year just gone has undoubtedly placed pressure on household incomes and 
we will monitor and manage income collection and debts diligently going forward. 

Benchmarking 
The Regulator for Social Housing published its annual Global Accounts 2020 in March 2021.  These accounts are a 
rich data source for benchmarking purposes, though of course they need to be approached with caution, the accounts 
reported on one year only, with results potentially affected by many unknown factors.  We have used the Global 
Accounts data to provide context for our work, to aid us to look in closer detail at our performance against the upper / 
lower quartile and against some local and out of county rural operators. 

The following table highlights the results for the Association compared with data published in the Regulator for Social 
Housing published 2020 Global Accounts; 

Registered 
Provider & (no. of 
units) 

Financial 
Year End 

Re- 
Invest. 

% 

New 
Supply 
(Social) 

% 

Gearing 
% 

EBITDA 
MRI 

Interest 
Rate 

Cover % 

Headline 
Social 

Housing 
Cost per 
unit, £k 

Op 
Margin 
(SHL) 

% 

Op 
Margin 

(Overall) 
% 

ROCE 
 % 

Broadacres HA Ltd 
(6,415) 

31/03/2020 9.5 2.0 43.2 97.6 4.33 19.8 1.28 1.7 

Castles & Coasts 
HA Ltd 
(6,711) 

31/03/2020 2.8 0.4 27.4 282.5 3.43 26.8 28.6 4.2 

Eden HA Ltd 
(1,823) 

31/03/2021 1.8 0.5 47.5 196.7 2.86 42.0 40.2 5.4 

North Devon 
Homes 
(3,308) 

31/03/2020 3.2 1.7 58.4 133.3 2.80 26.8 21.2 3.0 

South Lakes 
Housing 
(3,153) 

31/03/2020 8.2 0.5 28.1 137.6 4.41 15.8 17.3 2.1 

Providers with less 
than 2,500 units  
(44) 

31/03/2020 5.6 0.7 34.5 199.0 4.60 23.9 20.7 3.0 

                     

Lower Quartile 
Global 

Accounts 
2020 

4.9 0.7 33.0 126.0 3.34 20.8 18.1 2.6 

Median 7.2 1.5 44.0 170.0 3.83 25.7 23.1 3.4 

Upper Quartile 10.0 2.4 54.7 227.0 4.86 32.3 28.6 4.4 
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Direct comparisons are difficult and should be treated with caution. The March 2020 figures included for other 
associations clearly do not factor in the full impact of the covid-19 pandemic.  

The association is highly geared compared to most of this comparison group, however, our headline cost per unit, 
operating margin and return on investment are all better than the median. Taken in the round these value for money 
metrics indicate a reasonable performance for the year despite the full impact of the pandemic. 

Global Accounts ‘Best in Class’ –  
Our Board wished to see greater dialogue and exchange of learning take place with our identified ‘best in class’ 
associations. However, given the critical need to respond to the pandemic, we were unable to progress this as we 
would have liked to. Lots of effective engagement, sharing and learning did take place with various organisations in 
our pandemic response which is threaded through our outturn results for the year.  

We will look to secure efficient and effective learning from our identified ‘best in class’ organisations in the year ahead. 

Value for money gains over the last year 
In last year’s self-assessment we referred to making technological advances with the potential to reduce costs and 

increase service effectiveness & productivity. Little did we really know then just by how much and how quickly our business 

operations would change.  

An important fundamental element of our VFM strategy has been developing a culture of controlling costs within our 
business whilst achieving effective outcomes. 

This has served us well in the way our business quickly adapted to a hybrid working model where the majority of our 
staff have been temporarily home based whilst maintaining critical services to our tenants. 

Below are examples of the value for money gains achieved over the last 12 months; 

Project Outcome - Economy, Efficiency, Effectiveness 

Hybrid Working - 3CX System 
Replacement of Samsung phone system with 
new multi-purpose 3CX facility, which is 
supported by EHA IT Team instead of 
external support.   

1. One-off purchase cost of hardware for offices and schemes = 
approx £13k  + £1,500 annual license.   Cost saving of system 
over 5yrs = between £33k - £43k 

Hybrid Working - Licenses 
Trial licenses for hybrid working configuration 
instead of purchasing Microsoft licences at 
the start of the project 

1. Trial extended to allow usage from Nov-20 to Mar-21 = 
4months free usage 
2. Cost saving = £1,584 

Hybrid Working - Laptops 
Immediately prior to first Lockdown, EHA 
purchased 15x refurbished laptops instead of 
new ones to ensure immediate business 
continuity at a cost of £3,645 

1. Cost saving = approx £3,500 (half the cost of purchasing new 
laptops) 
2. Business continuity - delivery of refurbed laptops was quicker 
than it would have been with new laptops (from usual suppliers) 

Firewalls Replacement 
Current replacement of firewalls at HQ with 
newer/more capable model.  This includes 
20months of licence.  Our old firewall will be 
reused at our Extra Care scheme (Disaster 
Recovery site) which is due its licence 
renewal shortly 

1. Cost saving = £1,300 (based on licence renewal cost for 
Disaster Recovery site model for 20 months) 
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Electric Shower Supplier 
AKW (supplier) now provide electric showers 
to EHA at a cheaper price than SOR.  Field 
View fit item (usually within 48hrs) 

1. Economy saving - can be fitted for both general needs and 
sheltered units.  Have 5yr guarantee  
2. Improved service to customer and greater customer 
satisfaction 

PTSO Inbox 
New email inbox created to ensure all 
queries are collated in a central email 
location.  Shared responsibility for 
checking/dealing with queries, avoids delays 
in emails being sent to individual accounts 

1. Efficiency saving - improved customer response times, leading 
to greater customer satisfaction 

Rent Notices 
Notices now printed double-sided 

1. Cost saving on paper, toner, printer charges 

Electronic process for Rents Year End 
Pre-covid, processing Rents Year End would 
involve large volume of printing to check and 
review charges.  This is now completed 
entirely electronically 

1. Cost saving on paper, toner, printer charges 
2. Efficiency savings - process can be completed remotely, 
saving resource/staff time 
3. Effectiveness - enables electronic storage of checked 
documents for easy review by auditors 

Direct Debits Processing 
Process now completed electronically 
(except letters to tenants) 

1. Cost saving on paper, toner, printer charges 
2. Efficiency savings - customer queries can be more quickly 
checked using electronic documents, as opposed to locating 
paperwork that was filed away. Improved customer service. 

Online Training 
Training courses all now delivered online 

1. Substantial ongoing cost savings from travel, accommodation, 
subsistence expenses, as well as time away from the office 

Annual Report Produced In-house 
Design and production of Report by EHA 
instead of external supplier 

1. 2019 Report produced externally cost £3,104.  2020 Report 
produced internally (printed extrenally - £1,661).  Cost saving = 
£1,442 

Keysafes 
Fitting of keysafes at HQ for contractors to 
access/collect site keys 

1. Staff no longer spending time collecting/searching/delivering 
keys to contractors 
2. Contractors can collect keys at anytime of the day, whereas 
previously they could only do this during reception opening times 
- greater efficiency for our contractors and ultimately our 
customers 

Combining PDFs into Emails (setting Up a 
Tenancy) 
Pre-covid, all tenancy documents had to be 
in the same format when setting up a new 
tenancy, so that they could be combined into 
one document using software installed on the 
scanner.  Revised software now combines 
emails into a PDF, saving Customer Advisor 
time.  In the process of investigating remote 
connection the scanners to enable this 
process to be completed entirely remotely 

1. Significant saving in Customer Advisors' time cutting and 
pasting documents into correct format 
2. Documents are all saved in one place making it quicker and 
easier to complete the task 
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

Installation of an Intercom 
During the pandemic there has been 
permitted limited access to our HQ, however 
customers/contractors still had to gain to 
access the building (using a doorbell) to 
collect/drop off items.  Installation of an 
intercom has enabled visual identification of 
customer, enabling staff to engage prior to 
enabling safe access to the building 

1. Staff time saved 
2. Intercom works alongside phone system, so can be answered 
bty any available staff member providing quick response 
3. Calls from the intercom can also be re-directed to staff working 
from home, enabling remote working and longer hours customer 
service 

Arrears Process 
Since lockdown, arrears process is now 
more digital 

1. Enables greater efficient team working 
2. Saving on paper and costs to the business 
3. More efficient process for customers 

Brexit 
With the help of our key partners and supply chains we prepared as best we could for the forecast impact of Brexit. 
The risks we anticipated through Brexit were overtaken in priority by the business needs introduced through the 
pandemic. Brexit risks were reprioritised as a result. 

The UK left the EU at the end of 2020 and there has been no material impact on our business at the time of writing. 

Composition and Role of the Board  
The present Board Members are listed on page 3 of this report and each elected member holds a £1 share. 

Board Members are drawn from a wide background and bring a range of skills in keeping with those required to run 
the association. 

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its decision, which includes setting, monitoring and 
reviewing the Group’s and Association’s aims, objectives and policies. Responsibility for day to day operations is 
delegated to the Chief Executive. 

The Association’s Board now operates with one Committee to assist its governance and internal control, the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee, which operates within defined terms of reference.  The Independent Living Committee 
was closed upon the successful transfer of this activity. 

In addition, a Chairs’ Group consisting of the Chair, Vice Chair and Chair of Audit and Risk Management Committee 
meets with the Chief Executive monthly.  Terms of Reference approved by the Board exist for this forum.  The Chairs 
Group is not a decision making forum. 

Internal Controls 
The Board of Management has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the system of internal control and 
reviewing its effectiveness. This applies to the Association and its subsidiary. 

The Board of Management recognises that no system of internal control can provide an absolute assurance against 
material misstatement or loss or eliminate all risk of failure to achieve business objectives. The system of internal control 
is designed to manage key risks and to provide reasonable assurance that planned business objectives and outcomes 
are achieved. It also exists to give reasonable assurance on both the preparation and reliability of financial and 
operational information and the safeguarding of the Association’s assets and interests. 

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board of Management has adopted a risk-based approach to internal controls, which 
are embedded within the normal management and governance process. This approach includes the regular evaluation 
of the nature and extent of risks to which the Association is exposed.  

The process adopted by the Board of Management in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control, 
together with some of the key elements of the control framework includes: 
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

Identification and Evaluation of Key Risks 
Management responsibility has been clearly defined for the identification, evaluation and control of significant risks.  A 
new Risk Management and Board Assurance Framework was established in July 2018.  An independent internal audit 
recently conducted has provided substantial assurance to the Board of the risk framework’s effectiveness. 

Risks and their controls/mitigations are reported to every Audit & Risk Management Committee meeting and annually 
to Board.  The key strategic risks currently facing the Association are currently, 

• A range of risks presented by the Covid-19 pandemic 

• Concerns as to future pension costs/liabilities 

• Unsustainable Assisted Living Schemes 

• Financial capacity limiting Board ambitions 

• Keeping abreast of emerging issues and legislation.   

These items are currently within the Board’s risk appetite and are being actively managed, further controls and mitigation 
underway to strengthen governance and reduce these risks. 

Monitoring and Corrective Action 
A process of control, self-assessment and regular management reporting on control issues provides assurance to 
management and to the Board. This includes a rigorous procedure for ensuring that corrective action is taken in relation 
to any significant control issues, particularly those that may have a material impact on the financial statements and 
delivery of our services. 

Environment and Control Procedures 

The Board of Management retains responsibility for a defined range of issues covering strategic, operational, and 
financial and compliance issues including treasury strategy and new investment projects.  

The Board of Management has adopted and disseminated to all employees a Code of Conduct for Members and 
Employees.  

This sets out the Association’s policies with regard to the quality, integrity and ethics of its people. It is supported by a 
framework of policies and procedures with which Members and employees must comply. These cover issues such as 
delegated authority, segregation of duties, accounting, treasury management, health and safety, data and asset 
protection and fraud prevention and detection.  

Information and Financial Reporting Systems 
Financial reporting procedures include detailed budgets for the year ahead, detailed management accounts produced 
monthly and forecasts for the remainder of the financial year and for subsequent years. These are reviewed in detail by 
the Executive Team and are considered and approved by the Board of Management. The Board of Management also 
regularly reviews key performance indicators to assess progress towards the achievement of key business objectives, 
targets and outcomes. 

Internal Audit Assurance 
The internal audit framework and the risk management process are subject to regular review by Internal Audit who 
advise the executive directors and report to the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The Audit and Risk 
Management Committee considers internal control and risk at each of its meetings during the year. 

The Audit and Risk Management Committee conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control and takes account of any changes that may be needed to maintain the effectiveness of the risk management 
and control process.  The Audit and Risk Management Committee makes an annual report to the Board of Management. 
The Board of Management has received this report. 

Information for Auditors 
The Board Members who held office at the date of approval of this board report confirm that, so far as they are each 
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Association’s auditors are unaware; and each Board Member 
has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Board Member to make themselves aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish that the association’s auditors are aware of that information. 
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

Statement of Compliance 
The Board confirms that this Strategic Report has been prepared in accordance with the principles set out in Para 4.9 
of the 2018 SORP for Registered Social Housing Providers. 

By Order of the Board: 

 

 

 

Signed:   Date: 25 August 2021 
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities in Respect of the Accounts 
The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and registered social housing legislation require the Board 
to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
association and of the Income and Expenditure for the period of account. 

In preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to: 

• Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently, 

• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, 

• State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and 

• Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
association will continue in business. 

The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the association and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Co-operative 
and Community Benefit Society Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) 
Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered 
Providers of Social Housing 2019. It has general responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of 
the association and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

Corporate Governance  
The Board has adopted the National Housing Federation’s (NHF) Code of Governance ‘Excellence in Governance’ 
(2015).   

The Board is committed to integrity and accountability in the stewardship of the Group’s affairs and considers that the 
Group has complied throughout the year under review with the provisions of the NHF’s Code of Governance.  

The Board has also adopted the NHF Voluntary Merger, Group Structure and Partnerships Code. 

Governance and Financial Viability Standard  

The Board assessed its compliance with this regulatory standard as part of its annual review of Internal Controls.  We 
hereby confirm our compliance with this standard. 

Whilst in full compliance with the standard, in the interest of transparency, it is reported that we currently have 18 units 
not meeting the Decent Homes Standard (DHS).  Seventeen units relate to acquired Grade 2* listed buildings with the 
remaining unit un-inhabitable for structural reasons.  Improvement works are ongoing in the listed buildings and we 
anticipate they will meet DHS as works are completed.  Additionally, we currently have four properties where gas 
safety certificates have expired.  We continue to work with tenants and other agencies to remedy this situation. 

Executive Team 
The Executive Team comprises of the Chief Executive, Director of Finance & Corporate Resources and Director of 
Operations. They hold no interest in the Association’s share capital.  They act as executives within the authority 
delegated by the Board and make up the Executive Team. The detailed scrutiny of performance, the development of 
policy and procedures and expenditure approvals within budget, are carried out by the Executive Team. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report to Eden Housing Association 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Eden Housing Association Limited (the Association) and its subsidiary (the 
Group) for the year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Consolidated and Association Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Association Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity (Reserves), Association Statement of Changes in Equity (Reserves), Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies in note 1. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Association’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of 
the Group’s income and expenditure and the Association’s income and expenditure for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies 
Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing 
and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 
2019. 

 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.  
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Group and Association in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.  

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions 
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Association’s or Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Board with respect to going concern are described in the relevant 
sections of this report. 
 
Other information 
The other information comprises the information included in the Strategic Report, other than the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.  The Board is responsible for the other information.  Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.   
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If we identify such material inconsistencies or 
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 
statements or a material misstatement of the other information.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Co-operative and Community 
Benefit Societies Act 2014 or the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• the Association has not maintained a satisfactory system of control over transactions; or 

• the Association has not kept adequate accounting records; or 

• the Association’s financial statements are not in agreement with books of account; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Eden Housing Association Limited 

  

 
 
Responsibilities of the Board 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Board’s Responsibilities set out on page 16, the Board is responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal 
control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board is responsible for assessing the Group and Association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 
Council’s web-site at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
 
Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 
We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and 
then design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
In identifying and addressing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-
compliance with laws and regulations, our procedures included the following: 
 

• We obtained an understanding of laws and regulations that affect the Group and Association, focusing on those 
that had a direct effect on the financial statements or that had a fundamental effect on its operations.  Key laws 
and regulations that we identified included the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the 
Statement of Recommended Practice for registered housing providers: Housing SORP 2018, the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008, the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019, tax 
legislation, health and safety legislation, and employment legislation. 

• We enquired of the Board and reviewed correspondence and Board meeting minutes for evidence of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations.  We also reviewed controls the Board have in place, where 
necessary, to ensure compliance. 

• We gained an understanding of the controls that the Board have in place to prevent and detect fraud.  We 
enquired of the trustees about any incidences of fraud that had taken place during the accounting period. 

• The risk of fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations was discussed within the audit team and tests 
were planned and performed to address these risks.  We identified the potential for fraud in the following areas: 
laws related to the construction and provision of social housing recognising the nature of the Group’s activities 
and the regulated nature of the Group’s activities. 

• We reviewed financial statements disclosures and tested to supporting documentation to assess compliance with 
relevant laws and regulations discussed above. 

• We enquired of the Board about actual and potential litigation and claims. 

• We performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that might indicate risks 
of material misstatement due to fraud. 

• In addressing the risk of fraud due to management override of internal controls we tested the appropriateness of 
journal entries and assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates were indicative of 
a potential bias. 

 
Due to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material 
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards.  For example, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of 
irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal controls.  We are not responsible for preventing fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations and cannot 
be expected to detect all fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the Association, in accordance with section 87 of the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014 and Section 128 of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008.  Our audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the Association those matters we are required to state to it in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the Association for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
Beever and Struthers 
Statutory Auditor 
St George’s House 
215/219 Chester Road 
Manchester  
M15 4JE 
 
Date: 
2 September 2021
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 

 
 
 Notes  Year Ended 

31 Mar 2021 
Year Ended 
31 Mar 2020 

   Consolidated  
£’000 

Association 
£’000 

Consolidated 
£’000 

Association 
£’000 

Turnover 2  10,853 10,853 10,402 10,402 

Operating expenditure 2  (6,538) (6,538) (7,368) (7,368) 

Other income 2  78 83 96 91 

Gain/loss on disposal of 
property, plant and equipment 
(fixed assets) 

5  274 
 

______ 

274 
 

______ 

548 
 

______ 
 

548 
 

______ 

Operating surplus   4,667 4,672 3,678 3,673 

       

Interest receivable   13 13 50 50 

       

Interest and financing costs 6  (2,067) (2,067) (2,070) (2,070) 

 
(decrease)/Increase in valuation 
of investment properties  

  
 

5 
 

5 
 

     (15) 
 

     (15) 

       

Increase in valuation of Housing 
Properties 

  - - 5,628 5,628 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Surplus before tax 7  2,618 2,623 7,271 7,266 

 
Taxation 

 
8 

 
 

- 
 

- 
 

       - 
 

-        
    ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Surplus for the year after tax 
 

  2,618 2,623 7,271 7,266 

       

Actuarial gain / (loss) in respect 
of pension schemes 

11  (595) (595) 785 785 

       

Unrealised surplus on 
Revaluation 

12  977 977 1,943 1,943 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total comprehensive income 
for the year 

  3,000 3,005 9,999 9,994 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 
 

The financial statements on pages 20 to 49 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 25 August 2021  
and were signed on its behalf by: 
 
 

Board Member: Board Member:  Secretary: 
 

 
………………………………… 

 
 

………………………………… 

 
 

………………………………… 
 

The consolidated and parent results relate wholly to continuing activities and the notes on pages 24 to 49 form 
an integral part of these accounts. 
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Statement of Financial Position 

 
 

 
 

  Year ended 
31 Mar 2021 

Year Ended 
31 Mar 2020 

  
Notes 

 Consolidated  
£’000 

Association 
£’000 

Consolidated 
£’000 

Association 
£’000 

Fixed assets       

Tangible fixed assets 12  81,992 81,992 81,303 81,303 

Investment properties 13  680 680                   675 675 

Homebuy loans receivable 13  - - - - 

Investment in subsidiaries 14  - - - - 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

   82,672 82,672 81,978 81,978 

Current assets       

Trade and other debtors 15  611 611 648 642 

Investments 16  3,489 3,489 3,231 3,231 

Cash and cash equivalents 17  2,963 2,959 1,741 1,736 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

   7.063 7,059                  5,620 5,609 

       

Less: Creditors: amounts 
falling due within one year 

18  (3,048) (3,044) (1,475) (1,469) 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Net current assets   4,015 4,015 4,145 4,140 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

       
Total assets less current 
liabilities 

  86,687 86,687 86,123 86,118 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

       
Creditors: amounts falling due 
after more than one year 

19  (43,257) (43,257) (46,416) (46,416) 

       

Provisions for liabilities       

Pension provision 11  (3,732) (3,732) (3,009) (3,009) 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total net assets   39,698 39,698 36,698 36,693 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

       

Reserves       

Non-equity share capital 23  - - - - 

Income and expenditure reserve   36,638 36,638 34,755 34,750 

Revaluation reserve   2,920 2,920 1,943 1,943 

Restricted reserve   140 140 - - 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total reserves   39,698 39,698 36,698 36,693 

   ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 
The financial statements on pages 20 to 49 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 25 August 
2021 and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

Board Member: Board Member:  Secretary: 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

The notes on pages 24 to 49 form an integral part of these accounts. 
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Consolidated Statement of Change in Reserves 

 
Group  Year ended 

31 Mar 2021 
 

Year ended 
31 Mar 2021 

 

Year ended 
31 Mar 2021 

 

Year ended 
31 Mar 2021 

 

Year ended 
31 Mar 2020 

 
  

Notes 
Inc & Exp 

reserve  
£’000 

Revaluation 
reserve  

£’000 

Restricted 
reserve  

£’000 

Total  
reserves  

£’000 

Total  
reserves  

£’000 
       

Balance as at 1 April  34,755 1,943 - 36,698 26,699 

       

Surplus from Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

 2,618 - - 2,618 7,271 

       

Actuarial (loss) / gain in 
respect of pension schemes 

 (595) - - (595) 785 

       

Transfer to restricted 
reserves 

 (140) - 140 - - 

       

Unrealised surplus on 
revaluation of properties 

 - 977 - 977 1,943 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 

       

Balance at 31 March  36,638 2,920 140 39,698 36,698 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 
 
 
 

Association  Year ended 
31 Mar 2021 

 

Year ended 
31 Mar 2021 

 

Year ended 
31 Mar 2021 

 

Year ended 
31 Mar 2021 

 

Year ended 
31 Mar 2020 

 
  

Notes 
Inc & Exp 

reserve  
£’000 

Revaluation 
reserve  

£’000 

Restricted 
reserve  

£’000 

Total  
reserves  

£’000 

Total  
reserves  

£’000 
       

Balance as at 1 April  34,750 1,943 - 36,693 26,699 

       

Surplus from Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

 2,623 - - 2,623 7,266 

       

Actuarial (loss) / gain in 
respect of pension schemes 

 (595) - - (595) 785 

       

Transfer to restricted 
reserves 

 (140) - 140 - - 

       

Unrealised surplus on 
revaluation of properties 

 - 977 - 977 1,943 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 

       

Balance at 31 March  36,638 2,920 140 39,698 36,693 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 

      

 
The notes on pages 24 to 49 form an integral part of these accounts. 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

 Notes Year ended 
31 Mar 2021 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 Mar 2020 

£’000 
    

Net cash inflow from operating activities Note a 5,602 4,115 

Investing activities Note b (1,205) (6,334) 

Financing activities Note c (3,175) (2,386) 

  ___________ ___________ 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  1,222 (4,605) 

  ___________ ___________ 

    

Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year  1,741 6,346 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  1,222  (4,605) 

  ___________ ___________ 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  2,963 1,741 

  ___________ ___________ 

Note a - Reconciliation of operating profit    

Total comprehensive income for the year  3,000 9,999 

Adjustments for non-cash items    

Depreciation charges & write-off of fixed assets  1,599 1,775 

Decrease/(Increase) in valuation of investment properties  (5) 15 

Change in debtors  37 (122) 

Change in creditors  161 (365) 

Actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes   595 (785) 

    

Adjustments for investing & financing activities    

Surplus on property sale  (274) (548) 

Interest paid  2,067 2,070 

Interest received  (13) (50) 

Realised increase in valuation of housing properties  - (5,628) 

Unrealised increase in valuation of housing properties  (977) (1,943) 

Grant received  (588) (303) 

  ______ ______ 

Net cash inflow from operating activities  5,602 4,115 

  ___________ ___________ 

Note b- Cashflow from investing activities    

Purchase of tangible fixed assets  (1,574) (4,034) 

Sale of fixed & other assets   525 699 

Repayment Homebuy loans  51 - 

Grant received  51 232 

Investments  (258) (3,231) 

  ______ ______ 

Investing activities  (1,205) (6,334) 

  ___________ ___________ 

Note c - Cashflow from financing activities    

Interest paid  (2,139) (2,175) 

Interest received  14 48 

Loans repaid  (1,050) (259) 

  ___________ ___________ 

Financing activities  (3,175) (2,386) 

  ___________ ___________ 

 

The notes on pages 24 to 49 form an integral part of these accounts. 
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 Legal Status 

Eden Housing Association Limited is incorporated in England under the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014 and is registered with the Regulator of Social Housing as a Private Registered Provider of Social 
Housing.  The registered office is Blain House, Bridge Lane, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 8QU. 

Principal Activity 
Eden Housing Association Limited is a not for profit organisation, the principal activity of which is to provide affordable 
accommodation to those in need in the local community. 

Group Structure 
The group comprises the following entities: 

Name Incorporation Registered/Non-
registered 

 
Eden Housing Association Ltd 

Co-operative and Community  
Benefit Societies Act 2014 

 
Registered 

   
Eden Property Developments 
Ltd 

Companies Act 2006 Registered 

   

1. Principal Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and the Statement of Recommended Practice for registered 
housing providers: Housing SORP 2018.  The Group is required under the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969 to prepare consolidated Group financial statements. 

The financial statements comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative 
and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and 
the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019.  The financial statements are 
prepared on the historical cost basis of accounting as modified by the revaluation of housing and investment properties 
and are presented in sterling £’000 for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with FRS 102.  The Group meets the definition 
of a public benefit entity (PBE). 

Public Benefit Entity 
As a public benefit entity, Eden Housing Association has applied the public benefit entity ‘PBE’ prefixed paragraphs 
of FRS102. 

Parent Company Disclosure Exemptions 
In preparing the separate financial statements of the parent company, advantage has been taken of the following 
disclosure exemptions available in FRS102: No cash flow statement has been presented for the parent company. 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of Eden Housing Association Limited and all of its 
subsidiary undertakings as at 31 March 2021 using the acquisition method of accounting as required.  The results of 
subsidiary undertakings are included from the date of acquisition, being the date the Group obtained control. 

Basis of Consolidation 

Going Concern 
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes an ability to continue 
operating for the foreseeable future.  Disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic so far has been minimal with no  

significant, adverse impact on the financial viability of the Association.  Business contingency plans have been evoked 
to ensure critical services continue to be maintained with operational risks managed.   

The pandemic has not impacted key judgements or estimates made in the financial statements, the organisation 
continuing to operate as a going concern.  The Association continues to monitor the situation to ensure this situation 
continues to be managed effectively.   
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 1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued) 

Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for 
revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ 
from those estimates. There were no key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on amounts 
recognised in the financial statements. 

a. Development Expenditure. The Group capitalises development expenditure in accordance with the 
accounting policy (see Capitalisation of interest and administration costs below). Initial capitalisation of costs 
is based on management’s judgement that development scheme is confirmed, usually when Board approval 
has taken place including access to the appropriate funding.  In determining whether a project is likely to 
cease, management monitors the development and considers if changes have occurred that result in 
impairment. 

b. Categorisation of Housing Properties.  The Group has undertaken a detailed review of the intended use 
of all housing properties.  In determining the intended use, the Group has considered if the asset is held for 
social benefit or to earn commercial rentals.  The Group has determined that market rented property are 
investment properties. 

c. Impairment.  The Group identifies and assesses impairment at a property scheme level.  The impact of 
Covid-19 was reviewed by management as a trigger event and an impairment review took place.  As the 
association’s stock is accounted for at valuation, the impact of the pandemic is allowed for in this review 
process. 

Other Key Sources of Estimation and Assumptions: 

a. Tangible Fixed Assets.  Other than investment properties, tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their 
useful lives taking into account residual values, where appropriate.  The actual lives of the assets and residual 
values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors.  In re-assessing asset lives, 
factors such as technological innovation, product life cycles and maintenance programmes are taken into 
account.  Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of 
the asset and projected disposal values. 

b. Revaluation of Investment Properties.  The Group carries its investment property at market value, with 
changes in market value being recognised in profit and loss.  The Group engaged independent valuation 
specialists to determine market value at each year end.  The valuer used a valuation technique based on a 
discounted cash flow model using assumptions that include the potential impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.  
The determined market value of the investment property is most sensitive to the estimated yield as well as 
the long term vacancy rate.  The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of investment property are 
further explained in note 13a.  The valuation is not reported as being subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ 
as defined by VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation – Global Standards.  

c. Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits.  The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-
employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations.  The actuarial valuation involves making 
assumptions about assets valuations (including properties), discount rates, future salary increases, mortality 
rates and future pension increases. 

Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and the long term nature of these plans, 
such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.  In determining the appropriate discount rate,  

management considers the interest rates of corporate bonds in the respective currency with at least AA rating, 
with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.  The 
underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality, and those having excessive credit spreads are removed 
from the population bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high 
quality bonds.  The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific sector.  Future 
salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective sector.  
Further details are given in note 11.   
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 1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued) 

d. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets.  Impairment is recognised where the carrying value of a cash 

generating unit exceeds the higher of its net realisable value or its value in use.  A cash generating unit is 

normally a group of properties at scheme level whose cash income can be separately identified. 

 Turnover and Revenue Recognition 
 Turnover represents rental income receivable, capital grant, revenue grants from local authorities and the Homes 
England, income from the sale of shared ownership and other properties developed for outright sale and other income 
and are recognised in relation to the period when the goods or services have been supplied. 

 Rental income is recognised when the property is available for let, net of voids.  Income from property sales is 
recognised on legal completion.  Supporting People Income is recognised under the contractual arrangements. 

 Any sales of properties developed for outright sale are included in Turnover and Cost of Sales. 

 Support Income and Costs Including Supporting People Income and Costs 
 Supporting People (SP) contract income received from Administering Authorities is accounted for as SP income in the 
Turnover as per note 2. The related support costs are matched against this income in the same note.  Support charges 
included in the rent are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income from social housing lettings note 2 and 
matched against the relevant costs. 

 Service Charges 
 Service charge income and costs are recognised on an accruals basis.  The Group operates both fixed and variable 
service charges on a scheme by scheme basis in full consultation with residents.  Where variable service charges are 
used the charges will include an allowance for the surplus or deficit from prior years, with the surplus being returned 
to residents by a reduced charge and a deficit being recovered by a higher charge.  Until these are returned or 
recovered they are held as creditors or debtors in the Statement of Financial Position. 

 Where periodic expenditure is required a provision may be built up over the years, in consultation with the residents; 
until these costs are incurred this liability is held in the Statement of Financial Position within long term creditors. 

 Loan Interest Costs 
 Loan interest costs are calculated using the effective interest method of the difference between the loan amount at 
initial recognition and amount of maturity of the related loan. 

Loan Finance Issue Costs 
 These are amortised over the life of the related loan.  Loans are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at the 
amount of the net proceeds after issue, plus increases to account for any subsequent amounts amortised.  Where 
loans are redeemed during the year, any redemption penalty and any connected loan finance issue costs are 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income account in the year in which the redemption took place. 

Taxation 
The society became an exempt charity on 2 April 2015 and is therefore only liable to corporation tax on non-charitable 
surpluses. 

Value Added Tax 
The Group charges VAT on some of its income and is able to recover part of the VAT it incurs on expenditure.  All 
amounts disclosed in the accounts are inclusive of VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the Group and not 
recoverable. 

Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation 

Housing Properties  
Completed housing properties have been valued on the Existing Use Valuation for Social Housing (EUV-SH) basis 
and are revalued annually.  A full revaluation takes place every five years, with ‘desktop’ valuations being completed 
in intervening years.  The aggregate surplus on revaluation is the difference between the cost of the property and the 
amount of the valuation.  The cost of properties is their purchase price and construction costs together with capitalised 
repairs and incidental costs of acquisition and construction including interest payable.  Interest payable is capitalised 
by applying the Association’s average interest rate payable on borrowing used to fund development during the course 
of construction of the property up to the date of practical completion. 
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 1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued) 

Housing properties in the course of construction are stated at cost and are transferred into housing properties when 
completed.  Housing properties in the course of construction are not depreciated.  Housing properties are transferred 
to completed properties when they are ready for letting.  Market rental properties are stated at open market valuation. 

Impairment 
All properties are reviewed for impairment annually, and where housing properties have suffered a permanent 
diminution in value, the fall in value is recognised after taking into account any relevant capital grants. 

Depreciation of Fixed Assets Including Housing Properties 
Depreciation is charged on all assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic life of the asset at 
the following annual rates: 

Housing Structure 100 years  (1%) 
Bathrooms 30 years     (3.33%) 
Heating systems 15years     (6.66%) 
Kitchens 25 years     (4%) 
Windows 25 years    (4%) 
Plant and machinery 20 years     (5%) 
Furniture and equipment 10 years  (10% 
Office 50 years  (2%) 
Aids and adaptations 10 years  (10%) 
Digital TV upgrades 10 years  (10%) 
Office equipment  4 to 10 years (10% - 25%) 
Computer equipment  3 to 5 years  (20% - 331/3%) 
Septic Tank   20 years    (5%) 
Roof    60 years    (1.66%) 

Freehold land, Shared ownership properties and Garages are not depreciated. Where possible, certain elements of 
housing properties such as septic tanks, digital TV aerials and aids and adaptations, have been accounted for and 
depreciated separately from the connected housing property. 

Useful economic lives of all tangible fixed assets are reviewed annually. 

Low Cost Home Ownership Properties 
The costs of low cost home ownership properties are split between current and fixed assets on the basis of the first 
tranche portion.  The first tranche portion is accounted for as a current asset and the sale proceeds shown in turnover.   

The remaining element of the shared ownership property is accounted for as a fixed asset and subsequent sales 
treated as sales of fixed assets. 

Capitalisation of Interest and Administration Costs 

Interest on loans financing development is capitalised up to the date of the completion of the scheme and only when 
development activity is in progress. 

Administration costs relating to development activities are capitalised only to the extent that they are incremental to 
the development process and directly attributable to bringing the property into their intended use. 

Leasing and Hire Purchase 
Where assets are financed by hire purchase contracts and leasing agreements that give rights approximating to 
ownership (finance leases), they are treated as if they had been purchased outright.  The amount capitalised is the 
present value of the minimum lease payments payable over the term of the lease.  The corresponding leasing 
commitments are shown as obligations to the lessor in creditors.  They are depreciated over the shorter of the lease 
term and their economic useful lives. 

Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest components so that the interest element of the payment 
is charged to profit and loss over the term of the lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of 
the balance of capital repayments outstanding.  The capital part reduces the amounts payable to the lessor. 

Other leases are treated as operating leases and payments are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 
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 1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued) 

Reverse premiums and similar incentives received on leases to enter into operating lease agreements are released 
to Statement of Comprehensive Income over the term of the lease. 

Investment Property 
Investment property includes commercial and other properties not held for the social benefit of the Group.  Investment 
property is measured at cost on initial recognition, which includes purchase cost and any directly attributable 
expenditure, and subsequently at fair value at the reporting date.  Fair value is determined annually by external valuers 
and derived from the current market rents and investment property yields for comparable real estate, adjusted if 
necessary for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.  No depreciation is provided.  
Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income. 

HomeBuy 
The Group operates this scheme by lending a percentage of the cost to home purchasers, secured on the property.  
The loans are interest free and repayable only on the sale of the property.  On a sale, the fixed percentage of the 
proceeds is repaid.  The loans are financed by an equal amount of SHG.  On redemption: 

• The SHG is recycled, 

• The SHG is written off, if a loss occurs, 

• The Group keeps any surplus. 

Homebuy loans are treated as concessionary loans and are initially recognised at the amount paid to the purchaser 
and reviewed annually for impairment.  The associated Homebuy grant from the Homes England is recognised as 
deferred income until the loan is redeemed. 

Valuation of Investments 
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment.  Investments in unlisted company 
shares have been classified as fixed asset investments as the Group intends to hold them on a continuing basis.  

Current Asset Investments 
Current asset investments include cash and cash equivalents invested for periods of more than 24 hours.  They are 
recognised initially at cost and subsequently at fair value at the reporting date.  Any change in valuation between 
reporting dates is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Stock and Properties Held for Sale 
Stock of materials Stocks are stated at the lower cost and net realisable value being the estimated selling price less 
costs to complete and sell.  Cost is based on the cost of purchase on a first in, first out basis.  Work in progress and 
finished goods include labour and attributable overheads. 

Properties developed for outright sale are included in current assets as they are intended to be sold, at the lower of 
cost or estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. 

At each reporting date, stock and properties held for sale are assessed for impairment.  If there is evidence of 
impairment, the carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell.  The impairment loss 
is recognised immediately in Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Short-Term Debtors and Creditors 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within one year are recorded at transaction 
price.  Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in the income statement in other operating expenses. 

Grants  
Grants received are recognised under the performance model.  If there are no specific performance requirements the 
grants are recognised when received or receivable.  Where grant is received with specific performance requirements 
it is recognised as a liability until the conditions are met and then it is recognised as Turnover.  

When Social Housing Grant (SHG) in respect of housing properties in the course of construction exceeds the total 
cost to date of those housing properties, the excess is shown as a current liability. 

SHG must be recycled by the Group under certain conditions, if a property is sold, or if another relevant event takes 
place.  In these cases, the SHG can be used for projects approved by Homes England and Greater London Authority.  
However, SHG may have to be repaid if certain conditions are not met.  If grant is not required to be recycled or repaid,  
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 1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued) 

any unamortised grant is recognised as Turnover.  In certain circumstances, SHG may be repayable, and, in that 
event, is a subordinated unsecured repayable debt. 

Recycling of Capital Grant 
Where Social Housing Grant is recycled, as described above, the SHG is credited to a fund which appears as a 
creditor until used to fund the acquisition of new properties, where recycled grant is known to be repayable it is shown 
as a creditor within one year. 

Disposal Proceeds Fund (DPF) 
This has now been depleted. 

Holiday Pay Accrual 
A liability is recognised to the extent of any unused holiday pay entitlement which has accrued at the balance sheet 
date and carried forward to future periods.  This is measured at the undiscounted salary cost of the future holiday 
entitlement so accrued at the balance sheet date. 

Retirement Benefits 
The cost of providing retirement pensions and related benefits is charged to management expenses over the periods 
benefiting from the employees’ services.   

The Group is a member of two defined benefit pension schemes, the Social Housing Pension Scheme (‘SHPS’) and 
the Local Government Pension Scheme.  SHPS is a defined benefit multiemployer pension scheme administered by 
TPT Retirement Solutions (‘TPT’), now closed to active membership.  The Group also participates in LGPS, a funded 
defined-benefit scheme with assets held in separate funds administered by Cumbria County Council.  Defined benefit 
accounting is applied to both scheme. 

Revaluation Reserve 
The revaluation reserve represents the difference between the fair value of social housing properties and other assets 
and the historical cost carrying value, where deemed cost transitional relief was taken. 

Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at transaction price initially, plus, in the case of a financial asset 
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.   

At the end of each reporting period, financial instruments are measured as follows, without any deduction for 
transaction costs the entity may incur on sale or other disposal: 

Debt instruments that meet the conditions in paragraph 11.8(b) of FRS102 are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, except where the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. In this case the debt 
instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar 
debt. 

Financial Instruments Held by the Group are Classified as Follows: 

• Financial assets such as cash, current asset investments and receivables are classified as loans and 
receivables and held at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 

• Financial liabilities such as bonds and loans are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 

• Loans to or from subsidiaries including those that are due on demand are held at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, 

• Commitments to receive or make a loan to another entity which meet the conditions above are held at cost 
less impairment, 

• An investment in another entity’s equity instruments other than non-convertible preference shares and non-
puttable ordinary and preference shares are held at fair value, 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss 
is recognised in profit or loss immediately.   
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The following financial instruments are assessed individually for impairment: 

(a) All equity instruments regardless of significance; and 

(b) Other financial assets that are individually significant. 

Other financial instruments are assessed for impairment either individually or grouped on the basis of similar credit 
risk characteristics. 

An impairment loss is measured as follows on the following instruments measured at cost or amortised cost: 

(a) For an instrument measured at amortised cost, the impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 
effective interest rate. 

(b) For an instrument measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the entity would receive for the asset if it were to 
be sold at the reporting date. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
either directly or by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal cannot result in a carrying amount (net of any 
allowance account) which exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously 
been recognised. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately. 

Categorisation of Debt 
The company’s debt has been treated as “basic” in accordance with paragraphs 11.8 and 11.9 of FRS102.    
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 2a. Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus 

 
 2021 

Group    
Turnover 

 
£’000 

Other 
Income 

 
£’000 

Operating 
expenditure 

 
£’000 

Operating 
surplus 

 
£’000 

      

Social Housing Lettings  9,841 - (5,710) 4,131 

      

Other Social Housing Activities      

 Charges for Support Services  140 - (140) - 

      

Other:      

 Managed Associations  138 - (138) - 

 Other Social Housing Income  9 - (9) - 

      

Activities other than Social Housing       

 Supporting People  522 - (437) 85 

 Lettings   30 - (15) 15 

 Other  173 78 (89) 162 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total  10,853 78 (6,538) 4,393 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

      

 
 

     

  2020 

   
Turnover 

 
£’000 

Other 
Income 

 
£’000 

Operating 
expenditure 

 
£’000 

Operating 
surplus 

 
£’000 

      

Social Housing Lettings   9,493 - (6,628) 2,865 

      

Other Social Housing Activities      

           

 Charges for Support Services  131 - (131) - 

      

Other:      

 Managed Associations  136 - (136) - 

 Other Social Housing Income  12 - (12) - 

      

Activities other than Social Housing       

 Supporting People   404 - (346) 58 

 Lettings  35 - (18) 17 

 Other  191 96 (97) 190 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total  10,402 96 (7,368) 3,130 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
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 2b. Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus 

 
  2021 

Association 
 

 
Turnover 

 
£’000 

Other Income 
 

£’000 

Operating 
expenditure 

 
£’000 

Operating 
surplus 

 
£’000 

      

Social Housing Lettings  9,841 - (5,710) 4,131 

      

Other Social Housing Activities      

 Charges for Support Services  140 - (140) - 

      

Other:      

 Managed Associations  138 - (138) - 

 Other Social Housing Income  9 - (9) - 

      

Activities other than Social Housing       

 Supporting People  522 - (437) 85 

 Lettings   30 - (15) 15 

 Other  173 83 (89)              167 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total  10,853 83 (6,538) 4,398 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

      

 
 

     

  2020 

   
Turnover 

 
£’000 

Other Income 
 

£’000 

Operating 
expenditure 

 
£’000 

Operating 
surplus 

 
£’000 

      

Social Housing Lettings   9,493 - (6,628) 2,865 

      

Other Social Housing Activities      

 Charges for Support Services  131 - (131) - 

      

Other:      

 Managed Associations  136 - (136) - 

 Other Social Housing Income  12 - (12) - 

      

Activities other than Social Housing       

 Supporting People  404 - (346) 58 

 Lettings  35 - (18) 17 

 Other  191 91 (97) 185 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total  10,402 91 (7,368) 3,125 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
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 3.  Turnover and operating expenditure  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Group & Association 

General 
Housing 

 
 
 
 

£’000 

Supported 
Housing 

and 
Housing 
for Older 

People 
£’000 

Low Cost 
Home 

Ownership 
 
 
 

£’000 

Total 2021 
 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Total 2020 
 
 
 
 
 

£’000 
      

Income       

Rent receivable net of identifiable 
service charge 

8,064 669 154 8,887 8,824 

Service charge income 56 
 

291 
 

19 366 366 

Government grants taken to income 588 - - 588 303 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 

      

Turnover from Social Housing Lettings 8,708 960 173 9,841 9,493 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 

      

Operating expenditure      

Management (2,050) (168) - (2,218) (2,253) 

Service charge costs (165) (240) - (405) (557) 

Routine maintenance (1,062) (87) - (1,149) (1,383) 

Planned maintenance (294) (9) - (303) (594) 

Major repairs expenditure - - - - - 

Bad debts (29) (7) - (36) (66) 

Depreciation (1,252) (280) - (1,532) (1,517) 

Loss on disposal of components (67) - - (67) (258) 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 
Operating expenditure on Social Housing 
Lettings 

 
(4,919) 

 
(791) 

 
- 

 
(5,710) 

 
(6,628) 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 

      

      

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) on Social 
Housing Lettings  

3,789 169 173 4,131 2,865 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 

      

      

Void losses (being rental income lost as a 
result of property not being let, although it  

 
72 

 
34 

 
- 

 
106 

 
91 

is available for letting) ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 
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 4.  Accommodation owned, managed and in development  

 
Group & Association  2021 

No. of properties 
2020 

No. of properties 
  Owned Managed Owned Managed 

Under management at end of year:      

Social Housing      

 General needs housing social rent  1,426 138 1,442 138 

 General needs housing affordable rent  144 12 129 12 

 Supported housing  81 - 78 - 

 Housing for older people  68 - 68 - 

 Low-cost home ownership  103 14 103 14 

Key worker housing      

 Temporary social housing  5 - 3 - 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

  1,827 164 1,823 164 

  ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________ 

Non-Social Housing      

Under management at end of year:      

 Market rented  9 - 9 - 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

  1,836 164 1,832 164 

  ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________ 

Under development at end of year:      

Social Housing      

General needs housing social rent  - - - - 

General needs housing affordable rent  - - 7 - 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

  - - 7 - 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Movement in Social Housing Stock      

      

Number of properties at the start of the year  1,823 164 1,827 174 

      

Additions:       

New properties developed/purchased  8 - 14 - 

      

Disposals      

Compulsory sales (Right to Buy/Acquire)  (3) - (4) - 

Disposal of underperforming stock  (1) - (14) (10) 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Number of properties at the end of the year  1,827 164 1,823 164 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 
 
5.  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Housing Properties)  

 
Group & Association 
Housing Property Sales 

   
2021      
£’000 

  
2020 

£’000  
   General 

Needs 
 General 

Needs 
      

Proceeds of sales   385    699 

Less: Costs of sales   (111)  (151) 

   ______  ______ 

Total gain on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment (Housing Properties) 

  274  548 

   ______  ______ 
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 6.  Interest and financing costs  

 
 Group Association 
 2021 

£’000 
2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

     

Deferred benefit pension charge (LGPS & SHPS) 69 90 69 90 

On loans repayable within five years 369 360 369 360 

On loans wholly or partly repayable in more than 
five years 

1,810 1,889 1,810 1,889 

Costs associated with financing (116) (116) (116) (116) 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 2,132 2,223 2,132 2,223 

Less: interest capitalised on housing properties 
under construction 

 
(65) 

 
(153) 

 
(65) 

 
(153) 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total interest and financing costs 2,067 2,070 2,067 2,070 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 
The weighted average interest on borrowings of 4.78% (2020: 4.75%) was used for calculating capitalised finance costs.  

 
 
7.  Surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities  
 

Group & Association  2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

The operating surplus is stated after 
charging/(crediting):- 

   

    

Auditors remuneration (excluding VAT):  16 13 

    

Fees payable to the company’s auditor and 
its associates for other services to the 
group: Taxation compliance services 

 1 1 

    

Operating lease rentals:    

- Motor Vehicles  10 10 

- Land and buildings  9 19 

- Office equipment  3 3 

    

Depreciation of housing properties  1,422 1,420 

Depreciation of other owned fixed asset  110 97 

Loss on the disposal of Components  67 258 

 
 
 

8.  Tax on Surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities  
 

  Group Association 
  2021 

£’000 
2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

Current tax      

UK corporation tax on surplus for the year  - - - - 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Tax on Surplus/(deficit) on ordinary 
activities 

 - - - - 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 
The society became an exempt charity on 2 April 2015 and is therefore only liable to corporation tax on non-
charitable surpluses. 
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 9.  Directors’ remuneration  

 
Group & Association  

2021 
£’000 

 
2020 
£’000 

 
 

  

 
The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by executive Directors and 
former executive directors 

295 
______ 

274 
______ 

 
The aggregate compensation paid to or receivable by Directors (key management 
personnel) 

- 
______ 

- 
______ 

 
 

  

The emoluments paid to the highest paid Director excluding pension contributions 
116 

______ 
98 

______ 

   

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the LGPS pension scheme. The LGPS pension scheme is a 
final salary scheme funded by annual contributions by the employer and employee.  No enhanced or special 
terms apply.  There are no additional pension arrangements.  A contribution by Eden Housing Association of 
£16k (2020: £13k) was paid in addition to the personal contributions of the Chief Executive. 

Directors (key management personnel) are defined as members of the Board, the Chief Executive and any 
other person who is a member of the Executive Team or its equivalent. Non-Executive Members of the Board 
are not remunerated. 

10. Employee information         

  Group Association 
  2021 

No. 
2020 

No. 
2021 

No. 
2020 

No. 
The average number of persons employed during the 
year expressed in full time equivalents (37 hours per 
week) was: 

    

Office staff  45 44 45 44 
Wardens, caretakers and cleaners  9 10 9 10 
      
      
  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Staff costs       
Wages and salaries  1,766 1,732 1,766 1,732 
Social Security costs  156 145 156 145 
Other pension costs  242 241 242 241 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
  2,164 2,118 2,164 2,118 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
      

 

Aggregate number of full time equivalent staff whose remuneration exceeded £60,000 in the period: 
 
 No. 
£60,000 - £70,000 0 
£70,000 - £80,000 0 
£80,000 - £90,000 1 
£90,000 - £100,000 0 
£100,000 - £110,000                                          
£110,000 - £120,000 
£120,000 - £130,000                                          

0 
1 
1 
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 11. Pension obligations  

Eden Housing Association Limited participates in two schemes, the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS) 
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by Cumbria County Council.  Both 
schemes are both multi-employer defined benefit schemes.  The Schemes are funded and are contracted out 
of the state scheme. The scheme available for all new employees is the SHPS defined contribution scheme. 

The total pension liability at the year-end amounted to £3,732k, comprising £397k in relation to SHPS and 
£3,335k in relation to LGPS (total liability 2020 £3,009k, £164k SHPS plus £2,845k LGPS). 

Social Housing Pension Scheme    

The Group participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (‘SHPS’), a defined benefit multi-employer 

pension scheme administered by TPT Retirement Solutions (‘TPT’).  The accounting policy in relation to SHPS 

is set out on page 25.   

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2019 updated to 31 
March 2020 by a qualified independent actuary.     

   At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020 
   % % 
Rate of increase in salaries    3.88 2.47 
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation    3.17 2.47 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities    2.22 2.31 
Inflation assumption (CPI)    2.88 1.47 
Commutation of pensions to lump sums    - - 

 
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The 
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

 
   At 31 March 2021 

Years 
 

Retiring today     
Males    21.6  
Females   23.5  
Retiring in 20 years     
Males   22.9  
Females    25.1  

 
 

Analysis of the amount charged to                      
operating costs in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 

  At 31 March 2021 
£’000 

At 31 March 2020 
£’000 

Employer service/admin cost (net of employee Contributions)   (4) (2) 
Past service cost   - - 
   ______ ______ 
Total operating charge   (4) (2) 
   ______ ______ 
 
Analysis of pension finance income / (costs) 

    

Expected return on pension scheme assets    19 18 
Interest on pension liabilities    (22) (24) 
   ______ ______ 
Amounts charged/credited to financing costs    (3) (6) 
   ______ ______ 
Amount of gains and losses recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income   

    

Actuarial gains(/losses) on pension scheme assets     
47 

 
20 

Actuarial gains/(losses) on scheme liabilities    (299) 66 
   ______ ______ 
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised    (252) 86 
   ______ ______ 
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 Movement in surplus/(deficit) during year   At 31 March 2021 

£’000 
At 31 March 2020 

£’000 
     
Surplus/(deficit) in scheme at 1 April 2020   (164) (292) 
Movement in year:      

Employer service cost/admin (net of employee 
Contributions)  

  (4) (2) 

Employer contributions    26 50 
Past service cost    - - 
Net interest/return on assets    (3) (6) 
Remeasurements   (252) 86 

   ______ ______ 
(Deficit) in scheme at 31 March 2021    (397) (164) 

   ______ ______ 
     
     
Asset and Liability Reconciliation   At 31 March 2021 

£’000 
At 31 March 2020 

£’000 
Reconciliation of liabilities      
Liabilities at start of period    (968) (1,017) 

Service cost    (4) (2) 
Interest cost    (22) (24) 
Employee contributions    - (2) 
Remeasurements    (299) 66 
Benefits paid    10 11 
Past Service cost    - - 

   ______ ______ 
Reconciliation of assets   (1,283)                     (968)                      
     
Assets at start of period    804 725 

Return on plan assets    19 18 
Remeasurements   47 20 
Employer contributions    26 50 
Employee contributions    - 2 
Benefits paid    (10) (11) 

   ______ ______ 
Assets at end of period   886                         804 
   ______ ______ 
     
 
Actual return on plan scheme assets 

  
66 38 

   ______ ______ 
 
Asset Allocation 

  
  

Absolute Return   49 42 
Alternative Risk Premia   33 56 
Corporate Bond Fund   52 46 
Credit Relative Value   28 22 
Distressed Opportunities   26 16 
Emerging Markets Debt   36 24 
Global Equity   141 118 
Infrastructure   59 60 
Insurance-Linked Securities   21 25 
Liability Driven Investment   226 267 
Long Lease Property   17 14 
Net Current Assets   5 3 
Private Debt   21 16 
Property   18 18 
Risk Sharing   32                            27 
Secured Income   37 31 
Opportunistic Illiquid Credit   23 19 
High Yield                              27 - 
Opportunistic Credit   24 - 
Liquid Credit   11 - 
   ______ ______ 
Total assets   886 804 
   ______ ______ 
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 Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate funds administered by Cumbria 
County Council. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 March 2021 were £129,000, of which 
employer’s contributions totalled £93,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £36,000. The agreed 
contribution rates for future years are 18.2% for employers and range from 5.5% to 10.5% for employees, 
depending on salary.  

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2020 updated to 31 
March 2021 by a qualified independent actuary.     

   At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020 
   % % 
Rate of increase in salaries    4.20 3.60 
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation    2.80 2.20 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities    2.20 2.30 
Inflation assumption (CPI)    2.70 2.10 
Commutation of pensions to lump sums  
 

  - - 
 

 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The 
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

 

  

   At 31 March 2021 
Years 

At 31 March 2020 
Years 

Retiring today     
Males    22.7 22.6 
Females   25.3 25.2 
Retiring in 20 years     
Males   24.3 24.2 
Females    27.2 27.1 
     
     
     
Analysis of the amount charged to                      
operating costs in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

  At 31 March 2021 
£’000 

At 31 March 2020 
£’000 

Employer service cost (net of employee 
contributions) 

  (171) (157) 

Past service cost   - (186) 
   ______ ______ 
Total operating charge   (171) (343) 
   ______ ______ 
Analysis of pension finance income / (costs)     
Expected return on pension scheme assets                                193 216 
Interest on pension liabilities    (259) (300) 
   ______ ______ 
Amounts charged/credited to financing costs    (66) (84) 
   ______ ______ 
     
     
Amount of gains and losses recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income   

    

Actuarial gains(/losses) on pension scheme assets     
1,311 

 
(430) 

Actuarial gains/(losses) on scheme liabilities    (1,654) 1,129 
  

 
 

______ ______ 
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised    (343) 699 
   ______ ______ 
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Movement in surplus/(deficit) during year 

   
 

At 31 March 2021 
£’000 

 
 

At 31 March 2020 
£’000 

     
Surplus/(deficit) in scheme at 1 April 2020   (2,845) (3,234) 
Movement in year:      
Employer service cost/admin (net of employee 
contributions)  

  (175) (161) 

Employer contributions    94 121 
Past service cost    - (186) 
Net interest/return on assets    (66) (84) 
Re-measurements   (343) 699 
Effect of curtailments   - - 
   ______ ______ 
(Deficit)/Surplus in scheme at 31 March 2021   (3,335) (2,845) 
   ______ ______ 
     
     
Asset and Liability Reconciliation   At 31 March 2021 

£’000 
At 31 March 2020 

£’000 
Reconciliation of liabilities      
Liabilities at start of period    (11,291) (11,855) 
Service cost    (171) (157) 
Interest cost    (259) (300) 
Employee contributions    (36) (34) 
Remeasurements    (1,654) 1,129 
Benefits paid    116 112 
Past Service cost    - (186) 
   ______ ______ 
Reconciliation of assets   (13,295)                    (11,291) 
   ______ ______ 
     
     
Assets at start of period    8,446 8,621 
Return on plan assets    193 216 
Re-measurements   1,311 (430) 
Employer contributions    94 121 
Employee contributions    36 34 
Benefits paid    (116) (112) 
Administration expenses          (4) (4) 
   ______ _____ 
Assets at end of period   9,960 8,446 
   ______ ______ 
     
     
Actual return on plan scheme assets   1,504 (214) 
   ______ ______ 
     
Asset Allocation      
Equities   3,825 3,911 
Government Bonds   1,753 1,546 
Other Bonds   - 557 
Property   797 498 
Cash   408 405 
Other   3,177 1,529 
   ______ ______ 
Total assets   9,960 8,446 
   ______ ______ 
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12. Tangible fixed assets  

 
 
 
 
Group & Association 

 
Social 

Housing 
Properties 
for Letting 
Completed 

£’000 

 
Social 

Housing 
Properties for 
letting under 
Construction 

£’000 

 
Low cost 

home 
ownership 
Properties 
completed 

£’000 

 
 
 

Total 
Housing 

Properties 
£’000 

 
 
 
 

Freehold 
offices 

£’000 

 
 
 

Furniture and 
office 

equipment 
£’000 

 
 
 
 

Total 
fixed assets 

£’000 
Valuation        

 At start of the year 92,162 1,369 4,414 97,945 1,108 339 99,392 
 Additions to properties acquired - 233 - 233 - 184 417 
 Works to existing properties 1,157 - - 1,157 - - 1,157 
 Interest capitalised 65 - - 65 - - 65 
 Schemes completed 1,569 (1,569) - - - - - 
 Disposals (1,113) - (16) (1,129) (150) (9) (1,288) 
    Revaluation movement in the year 1,287 - (310)  977 - - 977 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ _______ 
 At end of the year   95,127 

 
        33    4,088  99,248       958       514  100,720 

 
Depreciation and impairment        
 At start of the year 17,611 - - 17,611 317 161 18,089 
 Charge for the year 1,422 - - 1,422 20 90 1,532 
 Disposals (875) - - (875) (9) (9) (893) 
 ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ _______ 
At end of the year 18,158 - - 18,158 328 242 18,728 
        

Net book value at the end of the year 
 

  76,969 
 

        33 
 

  4,088 
 

  81,090 
 

      630 
 

      272 
 

  81,992 

Net book value at the start of the year 
 

  74,551 
 

 _1,369 
 

  4,414 
 

  80,334 
 

___791 
 

___178 
 

_81,303 
        
Housing Properties comprise:      2021 

£’000 
2020 
£’000 

 Freeholds      81,090 80,334 
        
Historical cost of Housing Properties before valuation       
NBV at start of the year  68,978 1,369 8,044 78,391    
Net movement during the year 1,131 (1,336) (16) (221)    
 ______ ______ ______ ______    
NBV at end of the year 70,119 33 8,028 78,170    
 ______ ______ ______ ______    
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13(a). Investment properties held for letting 
 

  Group Association 
 
 

 2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

      
At start of year  675 690 675 690 
Additions  - - - - 
(Loss)/Gain from adjustment in value  5 (15) 5 (15) 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
      
At end of year  680 

______ 
675 

______ 
680 

______ 
675 

______ 

Housing properties and investment properties were valued at 31 March 2021 by Savills (UK) Limited, professional 
qualified external valour. The valuation of properties was undertaken in accordance with the Royal Institute of 
Chartered Surveyors Valuation Standards.  In valuing the properties, the following significant assumptions were 
used: 

 2021 / 2023 2023 / 2025 2025 / 2026 
In perpetuity 

perpetuity Discount rate 4.75% 4.75% 4.75% 

Annual Inflation rate 2.00% 1.80% 2.00% 

For future years, rent have been forecast at CPI plus 1% per annum. 

The outbreak of COVID-19, declared by the World Health Organisation as a “Global Pandemic” on the 11th 
March 2020, has impacted and continues to impact many aspects of daily life and the global economy, with some 
real estate markets having experienced lower levels of transactional activity and liquidity.  Travel, movement and 
operational restrictions have been implemented by many countries. In some cases “lockdowns” have been 
applied to varying degrees in response to further “waves” of COVID-19; although these may imply a new stage 
of the crisis, they are not unprecedented in the same way as the initial impact. 

The pandemic and the measures taken to tackle COVID-19 continue to affect economies and real estate markets 
globally. Nevertheless, as at the valuation date some property markets are functioning again, and transaction 
volumes and other relevant evidence at levels where an adequate quantum of market evidence exists upon which 
to base opinions of value. Accordingly, and for the avoidance of doubt, the valuation is not reported as being 
subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as defined by VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation – Global 
Standards. 

13(b). Homebuy loans 

  Group Association 
 
 

 2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

      
At start of year  567 577 567 577 
Loans issued in the year  - - - - 
Loans repaid in the year  (51) (10) (51) (10) 
Provisions against non-recoverable loans  (516) (567) (516) (567) 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
At end of year 

 
- 

______ 
- 

______ 
- 

______ 
- 

______ 
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14. Fixed asset investments 

Group Companies 
The group comprises the following entities, all registered in England: 

Name Incorporation  
and ownership 

Regulated/ 
non-regulated 

Nature of 
Business 

    
Eden Property Developments 
Limited  

Company – 100% Non-regulated Build Contractor 

(Registered number 4048736) 
 
 

At 31 March 2021 the Group has the following interests in the subsidiary: 
   2021 

£’000 
2020 
£’000 

     
Share of current assets   4 11 
Share of liabilities – due within one year   (4) (6) 
Share of liabilities – due after more than one 
year 

  - - 

  ______ ______ 
Share of net assets   - 

______ 
5 

______ 
     
Share of capital commitments   14 227 

 

15. Trade and other debtors 
  Group Association 

 
 

 2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

      
Tenant arrears  255 340 255 340 
Less: provision for bad debts  (128) (140) (128) (140) 
Amounts due from group 
undertakings 

 - - - - 

Other debtors  163 140 163 134 
Prepayment and accrued income  321 308 321 308 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
      
Total trade and other debtors  611 

______ 
648 

______ 
611 

______ 
642 

______ 
 
Debtors are all due within one year 

     

 

16. Investments 
 

Group & Association     2021 2020 

     £’000 £’000 
 

Time deposit investments > 3 months     3,489 £3,231 

17. Cash and cash equivalents 
 

  Group Association 
 
 

 2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

      
Money Market Investments  2,307 555 2,307 555 
Cash at bank  656 1,186 652 1,181 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
      
Total cash and cash equivalents  2,963 

______ 
1,741 

______ 
2,959 

______ 
1,736 

______ 
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18. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 
  Group Association 
 
 

 2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

      
Loans & overdrafts   1,979 - 1,979 - 
Trade creditors  298 240 288 96 
Rents & service charges paid in advance  83 70 83 70 
Amounts owed to group undertakings  - - 10 144 
Other taxation and social security payable  30 37 30 37 
Accruals and deferred income  400 492 396 486 
Deferred Capital Grant (Note 20)  - 313 - 313 
Recycled capital grant fund (Note 21)  214 124 214 124 
Disposal proceeds fund (Note 22)  - 155 - 155 
Other creditors  44 44 44 44 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
  3,048 1,475 3,044 1,469 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 
19(a). Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 
 

  Group Association 
 
 

 2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

      
Loans (Note 19b)  42,972 46,001 42,972 46,001 
Recycled capital grant fund (Note 21)  119 142 119 142 
Unamortised loan fee  (199) (208) (199) (208) 
Refinancing costs  365 481 365 481 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
      
  43,257 

______ 
46,416 

______ 
43,257 

______ 
46,416 

______ 
 

19(b). Debt analysis 
  Group Association 
  2021 

£’000 
2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

Loans repayable by instalments:      
Within one year  - - - - 
In one year or more but less than two years  - - - - 
In two years or more and less than five years  - - - - 
In five years or more  1,151 1,201 1,151 1,201 
      
Loans not repayable by instalments:      
Within one year  1,979 - 1,979 - 
In one year or more but less than two years  1,058 - 1,058 - 
In two years or more and less than five years  2,683 5,000 2,683 5,000 
In five years or more  38,080 39,800 38,080 39,800 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
      
Total loans  44,951 

______ 
46,001 

______ 
44,951 

______ 
46,001 

______ 

Loans are secured by specific charges on the organisations individual housing properties.  The loans are repayable 
monthly/quarterly at varying rates of interest and are due to be repaid by 2039. 
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The interest rate profile of the organisation at 31 March 2021 was: 

   
 

Total £’000 

 
Variable 

Rate £’000 

 
Fixed rate  

£’000 

Weighted 
Average 

rate  
% 

      
Instalment loans  1,151 574 577 2.72% 

Non-instalments loans  43,800 7,300 36,500 4.82% 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

  44,951 7,874 37,077 4.77% 

  ______ ______ ______ ______ 

      
At 31 March 2021 the PRP has the following borrowing facilities: £’000 
       
Undrawn committed facilities      - 
Drawn facilities      44,951 
      ______ 

 
Total facility 

      
44,951 

      ______ 

 

19c.  Analysis of changes in net debt  

      

Group Year Ended 
31 March 

2020 

Cash Flows Non-Cash 
Movement 

Year Ended 
31 March 

2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
Cash & Cash equivalents 1,741 1,222 - 2,963 

Investments 3,231 258 - 3,489 

Loans falling due within one year - - (1,979) (1,979) 

Loans falling due after more than one year  (46,001) 1,050 1,979 (42,972) 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 (41,029) 2,530 - (38,499) 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ 

     

 
 

  
 

 

Association 

Year Ended 
31 March 

2020 

Cash Flows 

Non-Cash 
Movement 

Year Ended 
31 March 

2021 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
Cash & Cash equivalents 1,736 1,224 - 2,959 

Investments 3,231 258 - 3,489 

Loans falling due within one year - - (1,979) (1,979) 

Loans falling due after more than one year  (46,001) 1,050 1,979 (42,972) 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ 

 (41,034) 2,532 - (38,503) 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ 
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20.  Deferred capital grant 
  Group Association 
   

2021 
£’000 

 
2020 
£’000 

 
2021 

£’000 

 
2020 
£’000 

      
At start of the year  313 81 313 81 
Grant received in the year  51 232 - 232 
Released to income in the year  (364) - (313) - 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
      
At the end of the year  - 

______ 
313 

______ 
- 

______ 
313 

______ 
 
 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
      
Amount due to be released < 1 year  -  313 - 313 
Amount due to be released > 1 year  - - - - 
  ______ ______ ______ ______ 
  - 

______ 
313 

______ 
- 

______ 
313 

______ 
 

21. Recycled capital grant fund 
    2021 

£’000 
2020 
£’000 

      
At the start of the year    266 405 
Inputs: Grants recycled – Property sales    9 27 
            Grants recycled – Other    58 22 
            Interest accrued    - 2 
Recycling: New build    - - 
    ______ ______ 
 
At the end of the year 
 

    
333 

______ 

 
266 

______ 
Aged Recycled capital grant fund      
      
Due within one year    93 124 
Due over one year but less than three    119 142 
Amount three years or older where repayment may be required  121 - 
    ______ ______ 
 
Total Recycled capital grant fund 

    
333 

______ 

 
266 

______ 

 
 
22. Disposal proceeds fund 

 
  2020 

£’000 
2019 
£’000 

    
At start of year: Funds recycled   155 395 
Inputs: Grants recycled  (155) (240) 
  ______ ______ 
 
At end of year 

  
- 

______ 

 
155 

______ 
    
Amounts three years old or older where repayment may be 
required 

 - 155 
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23. Non-equity share capital 

Group and Association 
   2021 

£’000 
        2020 
        £’000 

Allotted Issued and Fully Paid      
      
At the start of the year    11 11 
Issued during the year    2 3 
Cancelled in the year    (2) (3) 
    ______ ______ 
      
At the end of the year    11 

______ 
11 

______ 

 
The par value of each share is £1. The shares do not have a right to any dividend or distribution in a winding-up, 
and are not redeemable.  Each share has full voting rights. All shares are fully paid. 

 

24. Capital commitments 
     2021 

£’000 
2020 
£’000 

Capital expenditure that has been 
contracted for but has not been provided 
for in the financial statements 

    
14 

 
227 

Capital expenditure that has been 
authorised by the Board but has not yet 
been contracted for 

   
- 

______ 
- 

______ 
      
    14 

______ 
 227 

The organisation expects these 
commitments to be financed with: 

     

Recycled capital grant    - 81 
Proceeds from the sales of properties    - - 
Committed loan facilities    14 146 
    ______ ______ 
      
    14 

______ 
227 

______ 

The above figures include the full cost of shared ownership properties contracted for. 

25. Operating leases 
The organisation holds properties and office equipment under non-cancellable operating leases.  At the end of 
the year the company had commitments of future minimum lease payments as follows:- 

 
 Group Association 
 2021 

£’000 
2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

Land and buildings:     
Not later than one year 5 10 5 10 
Later than one year and not later than five years - 12 - 12 
Later than five years  - - - - 
 ______ ______ ______ ______ 
 5 22 5 22 
 ______ ______ ______ ______ 
Others:     
Not later than one year 8 8 8 8 
Later than one year and not later than five years - 7 - 7 
Later than five years  - - - - 
 ______ ______ ______ ______ 
 8 15 8 15 
 ______ ______ ______ ______ 
 ______ ______ ______ ______ 
 13 37 13 37 
 ______ ______ ______ ______ 

The lease agreements do not include any contingent rent or restrictions.  
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26. Contingent liability 
There were no contingent liabilities at the end of the year.. 

27. Grant and financial assistance 

   2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

     
The total accumulated government grant and financial assistance received or 
receivable at 31 March 2021 

 
27,426 

 
27,375 

Held as deferred capital grant   - (313) 
   ______ ______ 
     
Recognised as income in statement of Comprehensive Income 27,426 27,062 
 ______ ______ 

28. Related parties 
Eden Housing Association Limited is the Parent entity in the Group and ultimate controlling party.  

The subsidiary, Eden Property Developments Limited, is contracted by Eden Housing Association Limited on a 
design and build basis to carry out housing development projects on its behalf. All development costs are 
recharged to the Association on a cost plus basis, fees charged on a fixed basis relative to development costs 
incurred.  The quantum and basis of those charges is set out below. 

   2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

Eden Property Developments Limited     
     
During the year     
Transactions from subsidiary: 
Property costs for letting under Construction 

   
49 

 
1,035 

   ______ ______ 
At the year end     
Amounts owed to / (from) subsidiary   10 145 
   ______ ______ 
     

Eden Housing Association Limited also held a minority voting interest in Cumbria Housing Partnership Limited, 
a related company limited by guarantee, which acted as a joint procurement vehicle for its housing association 
members.  This company is no longer trading and has now been dissolved. 
 

   2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

Cumbria Housing Partnership Limited     

     
During the year     
Transactions from subsidiary:     

Property maintenance costs    - 45 
Dividends received in the year due to 
dissolution of CHP 

  9 35 

   ______ ______ 
At the year end     
Amounts owed to / (from) subsidiary   - 145 
   ______ ______ 

 
At 31 March 2021 there were no other related party transactions and the Board currently had no tenant members. 
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29. Legislative provisions (Association and Group) 

The Association is registered as a Co-operative and Community Benefit Society and is registered with the 
Regulator for Social Housing as a Registered Housing Provider (RHP) as defined by the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008. 

Eden Property Developments Limited is a company limited by shares registered with the Registrar of Companies.  
It is not a Registered Social Landlord. 

30. Post Balance Sheet Event 
 The Association continues to assess the impact of the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19) on the business.  
Although this has caused disruption, to date there has been no significant impact to key judgements or estimates 

made in the financial statements, business contingency plans evoked ensuring critical services maintained with 
operational risks managed.   

The impact to the future financial position has been assessed.  There could potentially be some reduction in 
operating margin due to loss of income, but this is forecast to be low with no significant impact to the business. 
This has been fully stress tested and mitigations plans are in place to manage such an eventuality. 

The Association will continue to monitor the situation to ensure this continues to be managed effectively, the 
organisation continuing to operate as a going concern.   

 

 


